
MEETING: Children and Young People's Trust 
Executive Group Meeting

DATE: Thursday, 24 November 2016
TIME: 2.00 pm
VENUE: Westgate, Level 3, Boardroom

AGENDA

1.  Apologies   14:00

2.  Feedback from the Front Line  (Verbal Report) 
An opportunity for colleagues to share real examples of good practice or 
challenges on the front line

3.  Identification of confidential reports and declarations of any conflict of interest   

4.  Minutes of the Trust Executive Group meeting held on 6 October 2016 - for 
accuracy  (Pages 3 - 12) 

4.1  Action Log/Matters Arising  (Pages 13 - 14)

Action Focused Discussion

5.  Joint Strategic Needs Assessment  (Pages 15 - 24) 14:10
(Liz Pitt)

6.  Information Sharing  (Verbal Report) 14:30
(Sara Hydon)

Children and Young People's Plan

7.  Monitoring template  (Pages 25 - 30) 14:50
(Richard Lynch)

For Discussion

8.  CYP Trust Annual Report - draft for comment  (Pages 31 - 46) 15:00
(Richard Lynch)

5 MINUTE COMFORT BREAK

Updates on Progress

9.  CYP Trust Website  (Verbal Report) 15:25
(Richard Lynch)

Standard Agenda Items

10.  Barnsley Safeguarding Children's Board Meeting held on 11 November 2016 - 
Highlights  (Verbal Report) 15:40
(Bob Dyson)

Public Document Pack



11.  Continuous Service Improvement Plan   15:45
(Julie Govan) CONFIDENTIAL (see Supplementary Agenda)

Reason restricted: 
Paragraph (2, 7a) Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual. 
Information which is subject to any obligation of confidentiality. 

12.  TEG Work Programme Review  (Pages 47 - 48) 15:50
(Richard Lynch)

Proposed agenda items for next meeting on 20 January 2017 
1. Barnsley Safeguarding Children Board Minutes – highlights (Bob Dyson)
2. Continuous Service Improvement Plan – confidential (Julie Govan)
3. TEG Work Programme Review
4. CYP Plan monitoring: performance highlights/ risks
5. Strategic Priority Theme: Improving staff skills to deliver quality services – report on 

performance measures to monitor/ challenge; provide updates into TEG; highlight where there 
are problems or risks (Amanda Glew)

6. Vulnerable children with SEN/ SEND Report (Margaret Libreri)
7. Access to therapeutic support and waiting times (Brigid Reid)
8. Inclusion and vulnerable groups (Matt Orr)
9. Looked After Children Sufficiency Strategy/ Foster Carer Placements (Richard Lynch) Action 

focused discussion re. how to collectively secure more foster carers in Barnsley
10. Healthy Start 0-19 (Public Health/ Kay Bennett)
11. Stronger Communities Partnership (Paul Hussey) 



1

Minutes of the Children and Young People’s Trust Executive 
Group Meeting Held on 6 October 2016

Present:

Core Members:
Rachel Dickinson (Chair) BMBC, Executive Director: People
Cllr Margaret Bruff Cabinet Member: People (Safeguarding)
Julia Burrows BMBC, Director of Public Health
Bob Dyson Independent Chair of the Barnsley Safeguarding Children Board
Margaret Libreri BMBC, Service Director for Education, Early Start and Prevention
Sean Rayner SWYPFT District Director Barnsley/ Wakefield
Amanda Glew BMBC Organisation Development Manager
Dave Whitaker Executive Headteacher representing Secondary Schools

Deputy Members:
Jakkie Hardy South Yorkshire Police Chief Inspector (for Tim Innes)
Paul Hussey BMBC Interim Service Director, Stronger, Safer and Healthier 

Communities (for Wendy Lowder)
Sharon Galvin Barnsley CCG Designated Nurse for Safeguarding/ Looked After 

Children (for Brigid Reid)
Debbie Mercer BMBC Head of Service Children and Family Social Care

(for Mel John-Ross)

Advisers
Richard Lynch BMBC, Head of Commissioning, Governance and Partnerships
Julie Green BMBC, Strategic Lead, Procurement and Partnerships Manager

In attendance
Andrea Hoyland Strategy Lead Early Intervention and Prevention: Healthier 

Communities (for item 10)
Julie Govan BMBC Children’s Social Care and Safeguarding Improvement 

Programme Manager (for item 13)
Denise Brown BMBC, Partnerships and Projects Officer

Action
1. Apologies

Brigid Reid Barnsley CCG, Chief Nurse
Mel John-Ross BMBC, Service Director of Children’s Social Care 

and Safeguarding
Jenny Miccoli Barnsley College, Vice Principal Teaching, Learning 

and Student Support
Gerry Foster-Wilson Executive Headteacher representing Primary 

Schools
Tim Innes South Yorkshire Police Chief Superintendent
Anna Turner BMBC School Models and Governor Development 

Manager
Susan Gibson Barnsley Hospital NHS Foundation Trust 
Wendy Lowder BMBC, Service Director for Stronger, Safer and 

Healthier Communities
Tim Cheetham Cabinet Member: People (Achieving Potential)

Page 3



Action
Change to the agenda

Item 6 on the agenda, vulnerable children with SEN, was withdrawn and 
deferred to January’s meeting. 

School Governor representation

Rachel stated that a challenge had been received regarding School 
Governor representation on the Trust Executive Group and the process for 
communicating back to School Governors. Richard responded that by the 
end of this term a process would be in place. This had been conveyed to 
the person concerned who had been satisfied with the response. 

Margaret 
Libreri

Richard

2. Shared experiences from the front line

Rachel had accompanied a social worker from Future Directions on a visit 
to a young woman who is a care leaver. Rachel was very impressed by 
the strong relationship that existed between the young woman, her social 
worker and carers. The young woman had a disability and was struggling 
to find an appropriate apprenticeship, which is a continuing challenge.

Cllr Margaret Bruff had visited a young man leaving care who is very 
confident, positive about himself, wanted to work and knew what he 
wanted to do. He had had a number of jobs and was always looking for 
new opportunities.  

Margaret Libreri had attended the BSARC open day, and found it a very 
good and informative event; was impressed by the building and the 
friendly staff. 

Julia reported that the 0-19 Service had joined the council and despite 
some teething problems, including some issues which IT were working on, 
staff members were positive about the move. 

Paul had attended the Barnsley in Bloom event and had been impressed 
by the number of schools and young people involved. Awards were 
handed out and there were dedicated categories for young people and the 
contribution they are making. It was also encouraging to see young people 
working with older people on shared projects. 

Rachel thanked everyone for their contributions and commented that it is 
pleasing to note the evident commitment to children and young people. 

3. Identification of confidential reports and declarations of any conflict of 
interest

The following reports are to be treated as confidential:
Item 12, Barnsley Safeguarding Children Board Minutes of 9 September 
2016, and item 13, Continuous Service Improvement Plan.

There were no conflicts of interest declared.

4. Minutes of the previous TEG meeting held on 4 August 2016 

The minutes were approved as an accurate record of the meeting subject 
to an amendment on page 11, item 14.  The second to last paragraph 
should read: ‘After reviewing the plan it was agreed that Margaret Libreri 
would be asked to review the outcomes for vulnerable children with SEN 
for consideration at the January TEG meeting.’

Page 4



Action
4.1 Action log

9 – Denise to confirm with Paul and Wendy what this action is about. 
[Following the meeting an e-mail was sent to Paul who undertook to 
discuss this action further with Jayne Hellowell]

5(ii) –Improving outcomes for care leavers; uptake of pupil premium and 
connectivity with the Barnsley Alliance. Margaret Libreri had attended the 
Anti-poverty Delivery Group where it was identified where this work links 
with the Alliance Board. A number of action points were identified including 
more of a focus on the uptake of pupil premium, identifying young people 
eligible for school meals, and a focus on vulnerable groups such as those 
with special educational needs. Follow up groups were identified including 
teen parents and those with mental health issues. Margaret had 
undertaken to attend the next meeting to follow up on the actions 
identified.  

5(iii) – Use of the Family Star Assessment Tool. Paul confirmed that the 
Think Family programme is using the Family Star Assessment Tool and 
that it is being promoted to current commissioners. Those using the tool 
are finding it very useful. 

6(i) Early Help – Rachel expressed concern that whilst there is now an 
Early Help Action Plan there is no Strategy in place. It was noted that work 
needs to take place to develop an all age strategy.

6(ii) – Findings and key deliverables of universal information and advice 
across all partnerships to be considered at a future TEG meeting. Denise 
to be advised when to schedule this for. Paul undertook to follow up this 
action.  

9(ii) – Daily Mile programme. Margaret stated that as the Alliance Board 
agenda had been full this item had been presented to the Primary 
Headteachers meeting. Information would be circulated via the e-bulletin 
in the hope of getting a better response. The programme had not been to 
Secondary Schools yet. Rachel requested an update around Easter time 
regarding the number of schools that had signed up to the programme. 

11 – Rachel asked Richard to contact the Children Society to obtain 
written confirmation that it had been made clear in their report that the 
case study used is not a young person from Barnsley. 

14 – As agreed earlier, the review of vulnerable children with SEN would 
be considered at the TEG meeting in January.  

Paul

Paul

Margaret

Richard

5. 2016 Education Outcomes and draft Barnsley Alliance Improving 
Education Strategy 2016-18 

The report provided an overview of 2016 education outcomes for children 
and young people aged 5-18 in educational settings in Barnsley and, 
where applicable, the progress made from 2015 final results. It was noted 
that the results are subject to change when final validated results are 
published in January 2017. 

Overall there was an improving picture, however, there are also some 
problematic areas, particularly around certain groups of children, that need 
to be addressed. The following points were highlighted:

Page 5



Action
 The rate of improvement for disadvantaged pupils (pupil premium) is 

lower than for non-disadvantaged pupils, and the gap for pupils with 
SEN has widened since 2015.

 The Barnsley Alliance Board had undertaken to get the data to 
provide an analysis about those schools that are not closing the pupil 
premium gap. The effective use of pupil premium is important.

 Dave pointed out that moving away from modular examinations had 
had a negative impact on SEN pupils and that there had been a 
national dip for that reason.  

 The significant gap at KS4 between pupil premium and non-pupil 
premium is also linked to persistent absence and exclusions. The bar 
has been raised in terms of acceptable behaviour which has resulted 
in more exclusions, particularly for SEN pupils. There needs to be a 
strong link into the Troubled Families Programme in relation to poor 
attendance.

 There has been an increase in the number of applications for home 
education, and an article is to be published in the Barnsley Chronicle 
on 7th October.

 At the BSCB Meeting it had been suggested that there be a peer 
review on children missing education.  

 A third of children are not ready for school, and everything possible 
needs to be done to improve this. Earlier identification and 
intervention is vital, as is the integrated two year old check-up. It was 
agreed that an update would be provided on how well that is working. 

 Outcomes for reading and writing are particularly low for each key 
stage and it was suggested that a campaign be championed to get 
Barnsley reading. It is also important that parents be encouraged to 
interact with their children and talk to them more. 

The Trust Executive Group agreed to:
 Challenge the Barnsley Alliance Board to address the areas of 

concern in terms of finance, exclusions and SEN progress. It was 
agreed that it would be helpful to undertake a deep dive in relation to 
exclusions of pupil premium pupils and those with SEN and that the 
results would be presented to the January TEG meeting.

 Challenge Secondary Schools to engage more with the early help 
offer. It is important that children and young people with complex 
needs are identified and that they have access to the right services 
earlier to prevent more complex issues from developing. 

 Challenge the Early Help Action Group to ensure that everything is 
being done to identify and support under achieving young people as 
early as possible, and to gain a deeper understanding of what is 
happening to cause increased fixed term exclusions for 14-15 year 
olds. 

 Receive an update from the BSCB in terms of a peer review on 
children missing education.

 Consider championing a campaign to get Barnsley reading.

Margaret stated that the Barnsley Alliance Improving Education Strategy 
2016-18 that had been circulated with the agenda is due to go to White 
Cabinet next week. Rachel asked that the next version of the strategy be 
re-circulated.

Margaret 
Libreri

Margaret 
Libreri

Page 6



Action
6. Vulnerable children with SEN

This item was withdrawn from the agenda and deferred to the meeting in 
January 2017.  

7. CYP Plan Strategic Priorities

Julie stated that meetings are progressing with TEG Champions to finalise 
the monitoring schedule which should be available for the next TEG 
meeting. 

No performance highlights or risks were raised for escalation.  

Julie 
Green

8. Stronger Communities Partnership update

The Stronger Communities Partnership (SCP) is a sub-group of Barnsley’s 
Health and Wellbeing Board, reporting via the Senior Strategic 
Development Group (SSDG).

The report lists the performance measures the SCP is seeking to influence 
and sets out key areas of activity and achievements so far. The 
Partnership’s quarterly meetings have an in-depth focus on a relevant 
topic, and to date these have included: Social Prescribing; Falls 
Prevention; and Universal Information & Advice.

The SCP would like to establish whether or not the information provided in 
the report chimes with members understanding of the role of the SCP; 
whether there is an opportunity to build an evidence base regarding what 
is working, what isn’t and why, and what can be done about it; and 
whether it is possible to co-design some of the solutions.

The following comments were noted:
 There needs to be more pace around provision of good information, 

advice and guidance, benefitting the Early Help agenda. Information is 
being garnered into one system to give timely access to key 
information and advice. It was hoped that the pace of that activity 
would speed up and that a solution would be in place by next financial 
year.

 The Community Safety Partnership is working closely with South 
Yorkshire Police in relation to domestic violence.  

 Rachel queried whether there was enough of a focus on local area 
coordination, including GPs? Paul stated that they are moving in that 
direction to help shape the local offer and identify the right families to 
work with, and that there is good representation from health and 
primary care providers. There needs to be further discussion to 
ensure that all the different workstreams are linked into this work. 

 It was acknowledged that there is a lot of activity at a community level 
commissioned through area councils that is not currently reflected in 
the SCP programme, and which the Children’s Trust should be 
sighted on.

 Most area councils have commissioned some enforcement with 
private landlords.

It was agreed that it is important for the SCP to establish an ongoing 
relationship with the TEG and to provide updates to future meetings.

Further comments to be sent to Paul Hussey via e-mail:  
PaulHussey@barnsley.gov.uk 

Work 
programme

Page 7

mailto:PaulHussey@barnsley.gov.uk


Action
9. Public Health Strategic Priorities to support children, young people and 

families to make healthy lifestyle choices

9.1 Smoke Free Barnsley (Kaye Mann) 
The presentation given highlighted the following statistics:
 Barnsley is nearly the worst in the region with 10.7% of 15 year olds  

being smokers
 17.6% of pregnant women were smoking at the time of delivery
 32% of households with a smoker in Barnsley fall below the poverty 

line. If these smokers were to quit, 2140 households would be lifted 
out of poverty. 

It was noted that the key objectives of the Smoke Free Barnsley Action 
Plan 2016-18 had been signed off by the Health and Wellbeing Board.

It was felt that the best approach was to change social norms and to make 
smoking ‘invisible’ to young people.  A Smoke Free Barnsley Programme, 
approved by both the Health and Wellbeing Board and Cabinet, will 
introduce designated smoke free areas in Barnsley including: hospital 
grounds; outside school gates; town centre zones; and selected play 
parks. The ban will be voluntary and not enforceable by law.

A Tobacco Enforcement Officer is working to stop the sale of fake 
cigarettes in Barnsley, and is also working with trading standards to try 
and prevent a Shisha facility from opening in the town centre by making 
sure that they are compliant with a number of regulations. 

It was suggested that a leaflet designed by children to encourage parents 
to stop smoking would carry a powerful message. It was also suggested 
that young people in the Youth Council be encouraged to start a group to 
lobby against smoking. 

An update on progress would be presented to a future TEG meeting. 
 

Kaye/ work 
programme

9.2 Oral Health (Anita Dobson)

Anita provided a verbal update on progress and the following points were 
noted:
 At its meeting on 9 August, the Health and Wellbeing Board had 

ratified the Oral Health Action Plan.
 Anita had met with Public Health England to discuss improving the 

offer and take up of fluoride varnish on children’s teeth when they visit 
the Dentist. Although it is part of the offer it is unclear whether 
Dentists are offering the treatment, whether take-up of the offer is 
being recorded, or whether parents are refusing it. 

 A discussion had been held at the Health and Wellbeing Board in 
relation to fluoridating the water supply. This is not part of the action 
plan but a meeting is being held with Yorkshire Water to discuss this 
option further. It was noted that there is a massive anti fluoridation 
lobby group.

 Work is underway with 6th Form College media students to write and 
perform a short play to promote oral health on U-tube.

 Family Centres across Barnsley will be equipped to run tooth brushing 
clubs. The community shop in the Dearne has been encouraged to 
promote tooth brushes and tooth paste. These are also included in 
food parcels provided through foodbanks. 

Page 8



Action
 It is important to identifying whether or not progress is being made, 

and if not this would need to be escalated to the Health and Wellbeing 
Board.

10. Think Family/ Troubled Families (Andrea Hoyland)

The report provided an update on Barnsley’s Think Family Programme 
which is the local delivery mechanism for the Government’s national 
Phase 2 Expanded Troubled Families Programme 2015-20. The report set 
out the five year delivery requirements, progress to date, and future plans. 
Also attached was a presentation ‘Qualitative Evaluation of the new 
Troubled Families programme’ by Ipsos Mori with a summary of ‘wave 1’ 
findings for Barnsley.

The aim is to ensure that in meeting the programme delivery objectives 
the funded work supports local strategic developments for targeted early 
intervention that take a whole family and integrated working approach, to 
deliver better outcomes for children, young people and families. 

The data in the report shows that the required milestones in the 
programme are being met, and there is good feedback from the frontline. 

Funding is available to 2020, and anything commissioned or developed 
needs to be sustainable to continue beyond the life of the programme. A 
key outcome is the ability to be more focused on resources at our disposal 
in terms of early help. Need to expand the support offer; develop IT 
solutions; and look at sustainability planning. It is important to ensure that 
this is not a one-off piece of work and that every opportunity is used to 
invest in wider solutions. The Police and other local partners are working 
in partnership to explore this further, including the development of an IT 
solution. Sean Rayner suggested that family members who smoke should 
be referred to ‘stop smoking’ support. 

Andrea stated that early work is also taking place with Education Welfare 
to develop a business case for earlier intervention in terms of attendance 
issues. 

11. Children’s Workforce Development (Amanda Glew)

The attached update was provided in respect of workforce development, 
highlighting work that had been undertaken as a result of suggestions 
made at previous TEG meetings.  The following points were noted:
 The development of the programme for 2017-2018 is progressing well 

with more than 80 courses planned and booked, including ‘hearing the 
voice of the child’, which had been requested by TEG at a previous 
meeting.

 The new programme focuses on the Early Help agenda, and the 
impact of the programme will be evaluated through the Early Help 
Steering Group audits.

 The multi-agency programme will include a new suite of domestic 
abuse courses, including more advanced training for staff who would 
like to become Domestic Abuse Champions within their own agency. 

 A Toxic Trio conference is being held on 13 October, and another one 
is being planned to take place in July 2017.

 A programme of safeguarding awareness training is currently being 
delivered to a variety of employees, and there are plans to reinstate 
Safeguarding Children and Adults Champions.

Page 9



Action
 A charging policy is now in place, including a charge for non-

attendance. Training continues are free for Barnsley agencies working 
with children and young people who contribute financially or deliver 
training for Barnsley MBC.  Further details of the policy are available 
on request.  

 Following a previous TEG meeting work is underway to identify how 
the workforce can be developed to have a greater understanding of 
child poverty and actions that can be taken to address this.  

 Progress continues to be made against improving staff skills in relation 
to the priorities of the Children and Young People’s Plan. The 
Workforce Management and Development Group will be working to 
develop key performance indicators to evidence progress and impact 
as a result of the plan.

Rachel thanked Amanda for the helpful update and was encouraged by 
the amount of activity, particularly in relation to early help.  Performance 
data would be welcomed when available. 

It was noted that South Yorkshire Police staff are unaware of the training 
available and it was agreed that Jakkie and Amanda would discuss this 
further outside the meeting. 

Amanda stated that following a presentation at a previous TEG meeting 
from the Barnsley Carers and Parents Forum around personalised 
budgets, she had tried unsuccessfully to contact the group to get an 
understanding of the particular issues in order to ensure that intervention 
is targeted at the right people and at the right level. Richard agreed to 
support Amanda to take this action forward. 

Jakkie/ 
Amanda

Amanda/ 
Richard

12. Barnsley Safeguarding Children’s Board Meeting held on 9 September 
2016 - confidential

The minutes of the above meeting had been circulated for information, and 
the following points were highlighted:

 Dan Foster from Greenacre School is now the Headteacher 
Representative on the BSC Board. 

 Schools had been invited to sign up to the Anti Bullying Charter and 
whilst there had been a lot of interest from primary schools only one 
secondary school had expressed an interest. 

 Operation Make Safe works with private businesses whose staff may 
witness child sexual exploitation or safeguarding concerns. It was 
noted that this role no longer exists in the Police, and Chief 
Superintendent Tim Innes had undertaken to commission a review of 
the programme to determine how it might be delivered locally, and 
would provide the Board with an update at their next meeting. 

 In the performance report it was noted that the proportion of contacts 
progressing to referral is stable at 26% in Quarter 1. This suggests 
that over 70% of contacts could potentially have been better 
addressed through the Early Help pathway. Bob commented that it 
would be good to see assessments being closed as well. 

 Barnsley has a high level of domestic violence and member agencies 
have been asked to undertake a self-assessment by the end of 
September. 

 It was agreed that the next Peer Review would be undertaken on 
Children Missing from Education, including children educated at 

Page 10



Action
home, and children on part-time timetables. It was noted that an 
article is due to appear in the Barnsley Chronicle on 7th October 
regarding the increase in the number of home-schooled pupils in 
Barnsley.  Rachel confirmed that the Trust Executive Group formally 
agreed with the proposal that a peer challenge be undertaken on 
children missing from education.

 The BSCB meeting had been held at Holy Trinity School, followed by 
a meeting with 15 young people from the school. They all had a very 
good general awareness of safeguarding issues, they reported feeling 
safe, and were not aware of any issues of bullying in the school. They 
spoke positively about school and there was no lack of aspiration. 
They highlighted the benefits of having the same form teacher all 
through school. This provided continuity and enabled them to build a 
good relationship with the form teacher. 

13. Continuous Service Improvement Plan (Julie Govan)

Comments from the last TEG meeting have been incorporated into the 
revised version of the CSI Plan. 

An evaluation is being undertaken of the plan to ensure that it is up-to-date 
and to confirm whether or not the ‘completed’ actions are still complete. 
There are some areas where the RAG rating is out of date, e.g. domestic 
abuse, care leavers and SEND. The review will be an opportunity to focus 
on different areas where there are emerging issues.

Rachel issued a challenge to Debbie to shift the current amber rating for 
‘increased timeliness of LAC and CP statutory visits and audit 
effectiveness’ (Voice of Child, page 14)

The next version of the plan is due at the end of October and will be 
discussed at the joint TEG and BSCB meeting on 18 November. 

Evidence is also being gathered to prepare for the Ofsted inspection. 

14. TEG Work Programme (Richard Lynch)

The work programme and future agenda items were considered and it was 
agreed that the Public Health items would be deferred to a later meeting.

The update on the review of paediatric services to be considered by the 
Executive Commissioning Group.

Members confirmed that, subject to the agreed amendments, they are 
comfortable with the work programme. 

Denise

15. TEG Terms of Reference – annual review (Richard Lynch)

The TEG Terms of Reference were last approved by the Board in July 
2015, and states that the Vice-Chair needs to be appointed on an annual 
basis in September. It was noted that currently the role of Vice-Chair is 
shared between Bob Dyson and Brigid Reid. Bob confirmed his 
acceptance of the role of Vice-Chair to the TEG and, following the 
meeting, Brigid did likewise.  

The following amendments were agreed:
 The Barnsley Health and Wellbeing Board Strategy to be updated with 

Page 11



Action
the latest version as soon as it is available, as will the JSNA and Joint 
Commissioning Framework

 The Barnsley Alliance Strategy; SEND Strategy and BSCB Business 
Plan to be added to the list of key documents.

 Membership: It was noted that Sue Gibson, Head of Midwifery for 
Barnsley Hospital, was leaving and Rachel undertook to follow up 
Barnsley Hospital NHS Foundation Trust representation at TEG. 

 LMC representation needs to be followed up as it was noted that 
Clare Bannon had not attended TEG since June. 

 Representation of School Governors to be addressed. Margaret 
suggested that the person representing School Governors on the 
Barnsley Alliance Board be asked to also attend TEG, which would 
improve the connections between TEG and the Barnsley Alliance 
Board, and this was agreed.

 TEG minutes are sent to the Health and Wellbeing Board and also the 
Barnsley Alliance Board for comment/ information. 

 In relation to the appendix 1, partnership arrangements, it was noted 
that the Anti-Poverty Board still meets. 

 Stronger Communities Partnership to be added alongside the 
Community Safety Partnership.

 In relation to appendix 2, The Ofsted Improvement Board is now the 
Ofsted Officer Group; Child Health Programme Board to be deleted 
and also the Think Family Programme Board. 

The Terms of Reference to be amended as agreed. 

Rachel

Denise

Margaret

Denise

16. Any Other Business

 Margaret Libreri circulated posters at the meeting, highlighting the 
importance of good school attendance and punctuality. These will be 
displayed at schools; GPs Surgeries; libraries; Alhambra Centre; 
Interchange; Barnsley Market, etc. 

 Safeguarding Week is being held in Bradford from 17 – 21 October. 

 A ‘Playing Out’ Pilot event took place on 24 September where 
designated streets were closed to allow children to play out in safety, 
and was reported to have gone really well. A short paper is being 
prepared for SMT. 

Page 12



TEG Summary of Actions and Matters Arising - 6 October 2016
Minute No. Issue and action point Accountable Officer/

Group
Progress/ date closed

Actions outstanding from previous meetings

9

Consider impetus on cultural change for  Improving Staff Skills to Deliver
Quality Services.  Denise to confirm with Paul and Wendy what this action
is about. [Following an e-mail to Paul he undertook to follow up this action
with Jayne Hellowell]

Paul Hussey

8

CYP Trust Annual Report.  Richard had proposed that an annual report of
activity  be  developed  for  the  Trust,  including  the  work  of  the  ECG.   A
framework for the report had been developed but was still work in progress.
It was agreed that an update would be provided at the next TEG meeting.

Richard Lynch On November agenda.

6 (i)
Early Help - all age strategy. Rachel expressed concern that whilst there is
now an Early Help Action Plan there is no Strategy in place. It was noted
that work needs to take place to develop an all age strategy. 

Margaret Libreri

(ii)
Denise to be advised when to schedule an agenda item for TEG to consider
the findings and key deliverables of universal information and advice across
all partnerships.

Paul Hussey

9 (ii) Daily Mile Programme.  An update to be received around Easter with the
number of schools that had signed up to the programme. Margaret Libreri On Work Programme for April 2017.

11

CAMHS  referral  pathways  in  Barnsley.  Richard  to  contact  the  Children
Society to obtain written confirmation that it had been made clear in their
report that the case study used is not a young person from Barnsley. Julie Green

Julie  had  received  the  amended  report  from  the
Children  Society  which  now  includes  a  footnote
(bottom of page 10) clarifying that this is not a young
person from Barnsley.

14 (ii) It was agreed that in light of the self-assessment, the review of vulnerable
children with SEN would be considered at the January TEG meeting. Margaret Libreri On Work Programme for January 2017.

Actions from 6 October 2016 meeting

1

School Governor representation on TEG.  The person representing School
Governors  on  the  Barnsley  Alliance  Board  to  be  asked  to  attend  TEG
meetings  in  future  to  strengthen  the  connections  between TEG and the
Barnsley Alliance Board. An agreed process to be in place by the end of
term.  

Richard Lynch/
Margaret Libreri

5 (i)

2016 Education Outcomes and draft Barnsley Alliance Improving Education
Strategy 2016-18.  Challenge the Barnsley Alliance Board to address the
areas of concern in terms of finance, exclusions and SEN progress. It was
agreed  that  it  would  be  helpful  to  undertake  a  deep  dive  in  relation  to
exclusions of pupil premium pupils and those with SEN and that the results
would be presented to the January TEG meeting.

Margaret Libreri

P
age 13

Item
 4.1



(ii) Challenge Secondary Schools to engage more with the early help offer. Margaret Libreri

(iii)

Challenge the Early Help Action Group to ensure that everything is being
done  to  identify  and  support  under  achieving  young  people  as  early  as
possible, and to gain a deeper understanding of what is happening to cause
increased fixed term exclusions for 14-15 year olds

Margaret Libreri

(iv) Receive an update from the BSCB in terms of a peer review on children
missing education. (A lead person to be identified for the peer review.) Margaret Libreri

(v) Consider championing a campaign to get Barnsley reading

(vi) The  next  version  of  the  Barnsley  Alliance  Improving  Education  Strategy
2016-18 to be re-circulated. Margaret Libreri

8
Stronger Communities Partnership.  It is important for the SCP to establish
an  ongoing  relationship  with  the  TEG  and  to  provide  updates  to  future
meetings.

Wendy Lowder/
Paul Hussey

On Work programme for regular updates.

11 (i)
Children's  Workforce  Development.  South  Yorkshire  Police  staff  are
unaware  of  the  training  available.   Jakkie  and  Amanda  to  discuss  this
further outside the meeting. 

Jakkie/ Amanda Multi-agency training brochure forwarded to Jakkie
for circulation within South Yorkshire Police.  

(ii)
Amanda  had  been  unable  to  contact  a  representative  of  the  Barnsley
Carers  and  Parents  Forum  around  personalised  budgets.  Amanda  and
Richard to progress this outside the meeting.

Amanda/ Richard

Meeting held Richard / Amanda - agreed that the
impact is much wider than personalised budgets and
is about culture and behaviour change within the
workforce.  Working group established to agree a
plan and approach to support the change in culture
and behaviour across health, education and social
care.

14 TEG  Work  Programme.  Public  Health  items  to  be  deferred  to  a  later
meeting. Denise Brown Action completed

15 (i) TEG  Terms  of  Reference.   Membership.  Rachel  to  follow  up  Barnsley
Hospital NHS Foundation Trust representation at TEG. Rachel Dickinson

(ii) LMC representation needs to  be followed up as it  was noted that  Clare
Bannon had not attended TEG since June. Denise Brown 

Clare Bannon had been unable to attend meetings
due to ill  health,  but  had undertaken to attend the
meetings in November.   Clare had advised that  Dr
Jamie  MacInnes  would  attend  meetings  from
January 2017 as a GP on behalf  of the CCG, and
would  also  provide  feedback  via  the  LMC  whilst
Clare is on maternity leave.

(iii) Terms of Refernce to be amended as agreed Denise Brown Action completed

P
age 14



Barnsley Joint Strategic Needs Assessment
2016 Report

P
age 15

Item
 5



Introduction Population

The production of a Joint Strategic Needs 
Assessment (JSNA) is a statutory duty and from 
1st April 2013, through the Health and Wellbeing 
Board, both Barnsley Council and the Barnsley 
Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) have an 
equal and explicit obligation to prepare the JSNA 
for Barnsley.

The purpose of a JSNA is to use all available data and 
information to assess the current and future health, social 
care and wellbeing needs of the local resident population 
to guide local strategies and plans.

The main audience for the JSNA are health and social care 
commissioners and service providers who use it to plan 
services, as it identifies the health and wellbeing issues of 
the Barnsley population.

The latest mid-year population estimates from the 
Office for National Statistics (ONS) show that the 
population of Barnsley in 2015 was approximately 
239,300 which is an increase of 7.5% from 2005. 

In 2015 the population consisted of 18.4% aged under 16, 62.9% of 
working age and 18.7% aged 65 and over. The latest data from the 
2011 Census shows that 97.9% of the Barnsley resident population 
were from a white ethnic background, 0.7% were from mixed/
multiple ethnic groups, 0.7% were Asian or Asian British, 0.5% were 
Black/African/Caribbean or Black British and 0.2% were from other 
backgrounds. 

The Department for Work and Pensions (DWP) figures regarding non-
British nationals that have been issued with a National Insurance 
Number (NINO), show that there were a total of 1,980 people who 
moved to Barnsley from other countries during 2015, of these, 58.7% 
were from Romania, 27.1% were from Poland. 

In July 2016 the Gypsy, Roma and Traveller Census that took place 
showed that there were 130 adults and 89 children (aged under 16 
years) who were known to the Council to be currently living within a 
small group of static and mobile encampments within the Barnsley 
borough.

There are groups within the population for whom we do not have 
accurate and up to date information. One such group is the number 
of unpaid carers. The 2011 Census indicated that over 7,600 Barnsley 
residents were providing 50 or more hours of unpaid care a week to a 
friend, relative or neighbour who has a disability or health problem. 
Another group are the Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual and Transgender (LGBT) 
communities. Population estimates for Barnsley show approximately 
14,400 LGBT residents living within the borough. 

P
age 16



What are the issues that 
cause poor health and 
wellbeing within Barnsley? 

Determinants of health illustrate the relationship 
between health and the physical, social and 
economic environment, many of which are 
distributed unevenly within the population.

Life expectancy in Barnsley, although lower than the England average, 
has slowly increased.  Life expectancy is 78.4 years for men and 81.8 
years for women. Whilst life expectancy has increased for men and 
women since 1991/93, the proportion of life spent in “good health” for 
both men and women has decreased. Healthy life expectancy at birth 
for men in Barnsley during 2009/11 to 2012/14 has increased by 0.2 
years. However, due to life expectancy at birth increasing at a greater 
rate during the period, the proportion of life spent in “good” health has 
decreased from 74.1% to 73.4%.

Not all communities within Barnsley experience the same health and 
wellbeing issues. For example those residents from Black and Minority 
Ethnic communities are reported nationally to experience higher rates of 
poverty than White British in terms of income, benefits use, worklessness, 
lacking basic necessities and area deprivation.

Lifestyle factors have contributed to a variety of 
health problems for Barnsley residents.
These include:
• Smoking
• Excess Weight
• Alcohol Consumption
• Unhealthy Eating 
• Inactive Lifestyle

Other factors also contribute to health 
inequalities. These include:
• Poor Education Attainment
• Lack of Digital Skills
• Unemployment
• Poor Housing Conditions including Fuel Poverty
• Poverty
• Deprivation

P
age 17



What are the health 
conditions that our
residents experience?

How do service users view 
the health and social care 
that they receive?

The health of Barnsley residents is generally 
poorer than the national average.  There are 
significant health inequalities across Barnsley.  
This creates growing pressures on health services, 
social care, informal care, supported housing and 
other services.  

Some long term conditions are preventable by modifying 
lifestyles and behaviours and promoting healthy living.  
Long term conditions impact on quality of life, contribute to 
inequalities and become more common as people get older.  
As people are living longer, more of them are expected to be 
diagnosed with long term conditions over time.

The main health conditions are:

• Cancer
• Coronary Heart Disease
• Respiratory Disease
• Diabetes
• Dementia
• Poor Mental Health

Barnsley Council and our partners have carried 
out a number of consultations with service 
users, the need for improved ‘personalisation’ of 
services emerged as a priority:

• Medical professionals need to establish the person’s 
communication needs, record these and make sure that 
all follow up discussions or correspondence properly 
meet that individual’s personal needs.

• Everyone should be treated with respect and be spoken 
to directly rather than through a third party.

P
age 18



What are the potential 
health and wellbeing 
issues for Barnsley in 
the future?

The latest population projections based on 
the mid-2014 population estimates show 
that the number of Barnsley residents is 
expected to increase by 6.1% and reach 
approximately 247,600 by 2020 of which 
20% will be aged 65 and over. 

To accommodate these extra people the Local Plan has 
proposed that an extra 14,790 dwellings are to be built across 
the borough between 2014 and 2033. If left, the current 
lack of housing options will further impact on resident’s 
wellbeing, including poorer housing conditions, higher 
housing costs, more people in fuel poverty and higher levels 
of overcrowding.

The number of older people is expected to rise significantly 
and the current housing offer may not be able to cope with 
the demand for suitable or specialist housing to meet the 
needs despite the additional planned dwellings.

As a result of an ageing population, the number of people 
experiencing particular illnesses or conditions will also 
increase. Information suggests that in the next few years 
more Barnsley residents will: 
• Suffer from Dementia
• Suffer from Depression
• Suffer a fall, particularly those aged 75 and over 
• Suffer a stroke, particularly those aged 75 and over and 

particularly males
• Be unable to take care of themselves or move around 

independently
• Be living with long term illnesses
• Be living alone
• Have obesity issues

What have services already done to help to 
improve health and/or wellbeing, and what are 
they developing for the future?

Barnsley Council and our partners are working together to 
address the health and wellbeing issues within the borough 
and a variety of projects have already taken place and 
are starting to have positive outcomes. This partnership 
working will continue to address the issues outlined in the 
Joint Strategic Needs Assessment through its strategies and 
local plans. 

P
age 19



P
age 20



P
age 21



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank



CORE PURPOSE: TO WORK TOGETHER TO IMPROVE CHILDREN’S OUTCOMES

BARNSLEY CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE’S PLAN 2016 – 2019
PROGRESS MONITORING TO ACHIEVE STRATEGIC PRIORITIES

OBJECTIVE:  KEEPING CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE SAFE
Key Ambitions to progress change:
 The Ofsted Improvement Notice that was previously in place has been lifted, and the Ofsted Improvement Plan has been replaced by a Continuous Service 

Improvement Plan through which the Safeguarding Children Board maintains oversight of, and carries forward, actions to ensure the continued improvement of 
services to, and outcomes for, children, young people and families in Barnsley

 Ensure all Board members are up to date with changes in policy, guidance and practice to enable them to provide strategic direction and scrutiny of core safeguarding 
and child protection processes and data, and provide effective challenge.

 Develop and improve performance management and quality assurance systems to ensure robust and continuous service improvement, supported by workforce 
development programmes to secure safe practice.

 Ensure that the Board maintains a comprehensive overview of the work of partner agencies involved with safeguarding children, including the Voluntary Community 
Sector (VCS)

 The Board receives assurance that the Sub-Groups reflect and provide for the requirements of Working Together guidance
 To ensure the implementation of the actions contained in the Child Sexual Exploitation Strategy.
 There is a commitment to establish a Multi-Agency Safeguarding Hub (MASH) that will see staff from a number of organisations working together in the same 

premises. This will improve working practices and communication to the benefit of children and young people.

TEG Champions: Bob Dyson, Independent Chair of the Safeguarding Children Board and 
Mel John-Ross, BMBC Service Director of  Children’s Social Care and Safeguarding

OUTCOMES PROGRESS RAG

Through the results of Quality Audits evidencing an improvement in working 
practices.

Key performance indicators evidencing an improvement.

An effective Multi-Agency Safeguarding Hub (MASH). Effectiveness to be 
evaluated in July 2017, one year from opening.

P
age 25

Item
 7



CORE PURPOSE: TO WORK TOGETHER TO IMPROVE CHILDREN’S OUTCOMES

OBJECTIVE:   IMPROVING EDUCATION, ACHIEVEMENT AND EMPLOYABILITY
Key ambitions to progress change:
 Close the attainment gap in  Early Years outcomes between Barnsley and National averages
 Improve school attendance so that it reflects at least national averages
 Support all children and young people, including the most vulnerable groups, to achieve their highest potential, narrowing the gap between national and local 

performance
 Promote good transition through education and encourage young people to access further/ higher education
 Improve the quality of teaching and learning 
 Improve leadership capacity in schools at all levels
 Further improve emotional health, resilience and behaviour of young people so that it does not hinder achievement
 Robustly utilise the Barnsley Alliance Support, Challenge and Intervention policy to improve outcomes for young people and improve the number of good and 

outstanding schools
 Through The Barnsley Alliance, further develop sector led improvements, brokered and commissioned support for schools and quality assure support and intervention
 Develop comprehensive learning pathways for young people 14-19 (25 for pupils with SEND)
 Develop a range of alternative provision in collaboration with local providers and local businesses
 Work with the business community and training providers to increase opportunities for all young people within the workplace including providing and promoting the take 

up of a range of apprenticeships.
 Promote lifelong learning to increase skills and aspirations to achieve success, wellbeing and economic stability

TEG Champion: Margaret Libreri, BMBC Service Director, Education, Early Start and Prevention

OUTCOMES PROGRESS RAG
Increase in the proportion of children attending good or outstanding schools
Pupil progress outcomes at all key stages will be at least in line with national 
levels
Reduce the performance gap between disadvantaged pupils in Barnsley and 
other pupils nationally at each key stage
Reduced number of fixed term exclusions for all Young People including the most 
vulnerable
Reduced incidents of persistent absence for all Young People including the most 
vulnerable
Reduced proportion of Young People aged 16-18 who are NEET 
Number of Early Help assessments indicted by agency source 

P
age 26



CORE PURPOSE: TO WORK TOGETHER TO IMPROVE CHILDREN’S OUTCOMES

OBJECTIVE:   TACKLING CHILD POVERTY AND IMPROVING FAMILY LIFE
Key ambitions to progress change:

To reduce number of children/young people in poverty through Borough wide and targeted interventions. 

 ‘Make Poverty Everyone's Business' and place core Anti-Poverty themes at the centre of family support and intervention work i.e., employment, independence and 
protection

 Support the Anti-Poverty Delivery Group to implement action plan
 Reduce child poverty to help Barnsley parents give their children the best start in life. This is a key aim within the Barnsley Anti-Poverty Delivery Plan
 Improve access to welfare advice and associated support services 
 Development of a second Community Shop in Athersley
 Improve access to affordable  credit

TEG Champions: Wendy Lowder, BMBC Interim Executive Director, Stronger, Safer and Healthier Communities, and
Jayne Hellowell, BMBC Head of Locality Commissioning and Healthier Communities

OUTCOMES PROGRESS RAG
Key Performance Indictors (KPIs) monitored through the Stronger Communities 
Partnership and Anti-Poverty Delivery Group show an improved trend

The national child poverty indicator for Barnsley ‘Children living in 
households claiming out of work benefits’ has shown improvement from 
24.9% in 2013/14, to 23.0% in 2015/16. 

The anti-poverty indicator set has been agreed and a Quarterly Performance 
reporting format devised for sign off in December 2016. The Anti-Poverty 
Delivery Group will review and maintain this on an annual basis.
 
Phase 1 of the ‘State of the Borough Portal’ with a specific poverty section, 
which will discharge the Child Poverty Act 2010 responsibility to have a local 
child poverty needs assessment, is expected to ‘go live’ in  December 2016.

The six-weekly Anti-Poverty Delivery Group meetings ensure that oversight 
of the actions in the Anti-Poverty Action Plan is maintained in timely and 
responsive manner with scheduled milestone reports by action owners, and 
the opportunity to include relevant ad hoc updates and new actions. Specific 
thematic Delivery Group workshop meetings also support the development of 
new and joint anti-poverty related actions.

Stories collected from families show improved impact Video clip outline and preparatory work completed. Case studies requested 
from Anti-Poverty Delivery Group membership.

P
age 27



CORE PURPOSE: TO WORK TOGETHER TO IMPROVE CHILDREN’S OUTCOMES

OBJECTIVE:   SUPPORTING ALL CHILDREN, YOUNG PEOPLE AND FAMILIES TO MAKE HEALTHY LIFESTYLE CHOICES
Key ambitions to progress change:
 Ensure the 0-19’s integrated public health service for children and young people will make a major contribution to the development of self-esteem; positive 

relationships; and healthy behaviour and lifestyle choices. 
 A targeted approach to improving the oral health of children. 
 Reduce childhood obesity starting with a focus on the areas of highest prevalence.
 Create a smoke-free generation with a particular focus on reducing smoking in pregnancy. 
 Ensure sexual health services, including contraceptive services, are accessible, personalised and effective, and reduce under-18 conceptions. 
 Ensure physical activity opportunities and healthy eating are embedded in school based programmes
 Work with early years services to ensure children are ready for school and opportunities are identified to tackle the causes of child poverty.

TEG Champion: Carrie Abbott, BMBC Service Director of Public Health

OUTCOMES PROGRESS RAG
Reduced under-18 conceptions

Reduced smoking in pregnancy rates 

Life expectancy at birth

Improved breastfeeding rates

Increased number of children who have a healthy weight

Demonstrable improvement in smoke free generation (Breathe 2025 Campaign)

Improved oral health of children

Improved school readiness 

P
age 28



CORE PURPOSE: TO WORK TOGETHER TO IMPROVE CHILDREN’S OUTCOMES

OBJECTIVE:  ENCOURAGING POSITIVE RELATIONSHIPS AND STRENGTEHNING EMOTIONAL HEALTH
Key ambitions to progress change:
 Strengthen the pace and focus on improvements in access and waiting times to Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services (CAMHS) to provide a timely and 

effective response.  CAMHS has committed to reducing the waiting time for the initial (Choice) appointment to 5 weeks by the end of March 2016.
 Improve the crisis care of children and young people (as highlighted in the Mental Health Crisis Care Concordat).  Additional funding (via the Local Transformation 

Plan) has been made available and will be utilised to enhance the operation of an SPA within CAMHS and will also enable priority access to CAMHS for C&YP via the 
YOT and LAC

 Strengthen and maintain the capacity of the workforce within universal services to promote emotional health and wellbeing and to support all children, young people 
and their families to respond appropriately.  Barnsley’s Local Transformation Plan focuses on the development of a ‘Resilience’ model of delivery within schools to meet 
the emotional health and wellbeing needs of children and young people. The initial focus will be developing resilience of primary school children. Barnsley’s Local 
Transformation Plan supports the development of a school-based Mental Health Therapeutic Service to be accessible by all schools in the borough, initially focusing on 
secondary schools 

 Ensure that children and young people have the opportunity to influence and shape development of the strategy that supports services required to promote emotional 
resilience.

TEG Champion: Brigid Reid, NHS Barnsley (NHSB) Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) Chief Nurse

OUTCOMES PROGRESS RAG
Sustained reduced waiting times for choice appointments to less than 5 weeks 

Wait to treatment - demonstrable reduction to treatment times to less than 18 
weeks by March 2017

Evidence that schools are sharing examples of how early signs of emotional 
distress are effectively managed and how wellbeing is promoted.

4Thought to be operating at full capacity by February 2017. Activity target to be 
set then for 2017/18.

Evidence that School Nurses are being used effectively to ensure universal 
services are fully deployed to prevent the need for specialist intervention, and 
when the latter is required to ensure effective referrals are made and utilised 
(reduction in DNAs)

Full coverage of Primary Schools by Thrive by March 2018 (Suzy Jubb)

Chillypep – Children’s Commissioners.  Evidence of children’s commissioning of 
mental health.  ‘Future in mind’ in plans for 2017/18.

P
age 29



CORE PURPOSE: TO WORK TOGETHER TO IMPROVE CHILDREN’S OUTCOMES

OBJECTIVE:  IMPROVING STAFF SKILLS TO DELIVER QUALITY SERVICES
Key ambitions to progress change:
 Establish common core skills, attitudes and behaviours for the children’s workforce to deliver safe practice and improved experience and outcomes for children, young 

people and families, including: being professionally curious; being able to identify needs as early as possible across the spectrum of outcomes; being able to offer the 
right service at the right time; consider the needs of the whole family; be tenacious and provide respectful challenge when necessary; strive for continuous 
improvement; demonstrate improved performance.

 Good leadership and management skills to ensure that the workforce is appropriately skilled and working towards continuous improvement.
 A workforce with an understanding of multi-agency working.
 Satisfied service users.
 Joined up Workforce Development Group

TEG Champion: Amanda Glew, BMBC Organisation Development Manager

OUTCOMES PROGRESS RAG
Evidence that the vision, strategic priorities, core skills, attitudes and behaviours 
have been shared with the children’s workforce
A revised early help training offer is developed and implemented

The workforce has an understanding of multi-agency working and the benefits this 
provides
A framework is established to ensure that the impact of the multi-agency training 
programme is effectively evaluated and the programme continuously improved

P
age 30



Barnsley Children, Young People 
and Families Trust

Annual Report 2015-16

Page 31

Item 8



2

indEx
Page No.

Foreword ……………………………………………………………………………. 3

Barnsley Children’s Trust Vision, purpose, priorities and outcomes …………. 3

Children, young people and families trust governance arrangements ……….. 4

The Trust Executive Group ………………………………………………………. 5

The Executive Commissioning Group ………………………………………….. 6

Strategic boards that contribute to the work of the CYPF Trust ………………. 7

Trust Executive Group achievements for 2015/16 ……………………………... 8

Executive Commissioning Group achievements ……………………………….. 12

Performance, quality and outcomes ……………………………………………… 13

Priorities where partnership effort can be aligned to have the Biggest impact 
and make the most difference to children, young people and families ……….

14

The challenges ahead …………………………………………………………….. 15

Page 32



3

Foreword
Barnsley benefits from a strong Children, Young People and Families Trust (CYPFT) which has 
been reflected in external inspection or peer challenges completed during the life of the 2013-16 
Children and Young People’s Plan. There is strong commitment from the agencies involved in 
the work of the Children and Young People’s Trust. Most importantly, we have made progress 
and the outcomes for children and young people are improving, although we collectively believe 
that they are not improving quickly enough and we still have much more to do. 
The shared ambition of the Barnsley’s CYPF Trust and Barnsley Safeguarding Children’s Board 
(BSCB) is to go beyond Ofsted’s latest judgement of ‘requires improvement’ and to deliver the 
best possible outcomes for local children, young people and families. This means collectively 
working together to deliver services which are judged to be at least good.  In order to achieve this 
ambition, services for children, young people and families will continue to use the Continuous 
Service Improvement Framework with progress being monitored by the Barnsley Safeguarding 
Children Board. 
Children and young people from Barnsley’s Youth Council were asked about the priorities in the 
2013-16 plan and their response was very clear “the priorities are right – get on with it”.  A very 
clear steer from the most important voice of all – that of children and young people!

Barnsley Children’s Trust Vision, purpose, priorities 
and outcomes:
The core purpose of the Barnsley Children and Young People’s Trust is ‘To work together to 
improve children’s outcomes’. In an environment that is constantly changing in terms of policy 
changes; reducing financial resources; demography and local demand, it is vital that a healthy and 
productive partnership is maintained. The Children and Young People’s Trust is a partnership 
which is representative of various services in Barnsley all working to improve the lives of children, 
young people and families.  The corporate vision for Barnsley is: Working together for a brighter 
future, a better Barnsley. We want: ‘A thriving and vibrant economy; people achieving their 
potential; and strong and resilient communities’.

The vision of the CYPF Trust is:  for all Barnsley’s children to attend a school that has been 
graded as ‘good’ by Ofsted; success in learning and work; and ‘strong’ resilient families. 
As a partnership we express our vision; strategic priorities and outcomes as ‘365 – make every 
day count for every child’, which can only be achieved through the co-operation and commitment 
of all partners.  

 Strong families, strong Barnsley
 Every child in a good schoolVISION 
 Success in learning and work

 Keeping children and young people safe
 improving education, achievement and employability
 tackling child poverty and improving family life
 supporting all children, young people and families to make healthy 

lifestyle choices
 encouraging positive relationships and strengthening emotional health

STRATEGIC
PRIORITIES 

 improving staff skills to deliver quality services

 Being healthy
 Staying safe
 Enjoying and achieving
 Being an active citizen

OUTCOMES   5

 Earning a good living

3

6

Page 33



4

If the vision is achieved children and young people will be healthy, live in a safe environment, 
make healthy lifestyle choices, enjoy education and go on to achieve their full potential.  This 
would enable young people to secure good jobs so that they contribute to the economy, and 
become active citizens who are socially responsible and are contributing to society, creating a 
better Barnsley. 

CHILDREN, YOUNG PEOPLE AND FAMILIES TRUST GOVERNANCE 
ARRANGEMENTS
The One Barnsley Board of the Local Strategic Partnership (LSP) is responsible for agreeing the 
overall strategic direction for achieving the economic and social wellbeing of the Borough, as 
outlined in the vision and objectives of the following two strategies:
 Barnsley Health and Wellbeing Strategy (2016-19) – responsibility for achieving the vision 

and objectives of the strategy rests with the Barnsley Health and Wellbeing Board
 Barnsley Jobs and Business Plan (2014-17) – previously known as the Barnsley Economic 

Strategy. Responsibility for achieving the strategic objectives of the Plan, rests with the 
Barnsley Economic Partnership (BEP)    

Through its responsibility for improving outcomes for children, young people and families, the 
Barnsley Children, Young People and Families Trust Executive Group, together with its sub-
groups and the Barnsley Safeguarding Children Board, contributes to the strategic objectives of 
both the Barnsley Health and Wellbeing Board and the Barnsley Economic Partnership. In 
structural terms, the Trust forms part of the governance arrangements of the Health and 
Wellbeing Board.

As part of these LSP arrangements, Barnsley MBC’s own performance on delivering the 
outcomes of the 3 priorities of its Corporate Plan (2015-18), including improving outcomes for 
children, young people and families, is accountable to Cabinet on a quarterly basis. Further 
challenge and accountability is provided through the Overview and Scrutiny Committee and 
Safeguarding Scrutiny Committee.

The work of the CYPFT is also closely aligned to the following key documents:     

1. Barnsley MBC Corporate Plan (2015-18)
2. Barnsley Alliance Strategy
3. Special Educational Needs and Disabilities Strategy
4. Barnsley Safeguarding Children Board Annual Report

The Children, Young People and Families Trust (CYPFT) works in co-operation with One 
Barnsley, which is the local Strategic Partner, is directly linked to the Health and Wellbeing 
Board, and indirectly linked to the Barnsley Economic Partnership via the Barnsley Alliance 
Board.  

Page 34

https://www2.barnsley.gov.uk/media/3052491/hwbs_2013-16.pdf
https://www2.barnsley.gov.uk/media/3484499/bmbc_jobs_and_business_plan_2014_2017.pdf
https://www2.barnsley.gov.uk/media/3704553/corporate_plan_2015-18.pdf
https://www.safeguardingchildrenbarnsley.com/media/29987/annual_report_2015_to_16.pdf


5

The Trust Executive Group
The Trust Executive Group (TEG) is representative of all key delivery partners at senior level, 
and is responsible for the delivery of Barnsley's Children and Young People's Plan; 
commissioning high quality services; allocating resources and monitoring performance. Children 
and young people have opportunities through a variety of arenas to influence aspects of the 
planning, commissioning and delivery of services.

Meetings are open to the public and press, and papers are available for inspection upon request 
via the Children’s Trust website. A confidential section to the meeting can exclude the public and 
press.

Members of TEG:

Barnsley Metropolitan Borough Council
 People Directorate Executive Director (Chair), Rachel Dickinson
 Director of Public Health, Julia Burrows
 Education, Early Start and Prevention Service Director, People Directorate, Margaret Libreri
 Children’s Social Care and Safeguarding Service Director, People Directorate, 

Mel John-Ross
 Head of Locality Commissioning and Healthier Communities, Communities Directorate, 

Jayne Hellowell
 Human Resources, Performance and Communications, Organisation and Workforce 

Improvement, Organisation Development Manager, Amanda Glew
 Head of Barnsley Schools Alliance, People Directorate, Colette Gollcher
 Head of Commissioning, Governance and Partnerships, People Directorate, Richard Lynch
 Strategic Lead, Procurement and Partnerships, People Directorate, Julie Green
 Performance Improvement Officer, Will Boyes
 Partnerships and Projects Officer, People Directorate, Denise Brown

Councillors
 People (Achieving Potential), Royston Labour Cabinet Spokesperson Cllr Tim Cheetham
 People (Safeguarding), Central Labour Cabinet Spokesperson Cllr Margaret Bruff

Barnsley Safeguarding Children Board
Independent Chair of the Barnsley Safeguarding Children Board, Robert Dyson

Voluntary Action Barnsley
VAB Chief Executive Corporate Services, Christine Drabble

Barnsley Hospital NHS Foundation Trust
Barnsley Hospital NHS Foundation Trust, Matron – Women’s services, Sandra Newman

Schools and School Governors
 The Barnsley Association of Headteachers of Primary, Special and Nursery Schools 

representative, Gerry Foster-Wilson, Executive Headteacher
 Barnsley Academies, College, University and Secondary Schools representative, 

David Whitaker, Executive Headteacher
 Barnsley Governors Association, Margaret Gostelow

Youth Council
Operations Manager - Communities, Targeted Youth Support /Early Intervention, Angela Kelly

Page 35

https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/services/children-families-and-education/children-young-people-and-families-trust/


6

Barnsley College
Vice Principal Teaching, Learning and Student Support, Jenny Miccoli  

NHS Barnsley Clinical Commissioning Group
NHS Barnsley Clinical Commissioning Group Chief Nurse, Brigid Reid

South Yorkshire Police
South Yorkshire Police Chief Superintendent, Timothy Innes

South West Yorkshire Partnership Foundation Trust
South West Yorkshire Partnership Foundation Trust District Director, Sean Rayner

Local Medical Committee
Barnsley Local Medical Committee representative, Dr Clare Bannon, GP

Quotation from a member of the Trust Board … 
The CYP Trusts representative for Primary Schools said: “Being a partner within the CYP 
Trust supports my ability to lead schools where children are kept safe and life quality and 
chances are improved.  As a result of early intervention, driven by enhanced knowledge of 
how multi-agency partners can support our vision, barriers to learning are removed, 
progress is accelerated and attainment is improved.”

The Executive Commissioning Group 
The purpose of the Executive Commissioning Group (ECG) is to secure partnership alignment of 
commissioning so that the right range of services at the right quality and cost are commissioned.  
This will contribute to a better future for Barnsley's children, young people and families so that we 
close the gaps in educational attainment, skills, health inequalities and general wellbeing and can 
stand proudly alongside the best in the country. 

The Executive Commissioning Group (ECG) is responsible to the Children and Young People's 
Trust (CYPT) and to individual partner organisations. The CYPT has a shared strategic 
commissioning aim to provide high-quality services based on joint strategic needs assessment 
within available resources to achieve the '365' vision, priorities and outcomes. There is a strong 
relationship between the ECG and the work of the Health and Wellbeing Board (H&WB). 

Members of ECG:

Barnsley Metropolitan Borough Council
 People Directorate Executive Director (Chair), Rachel Dickinson
 Education, Early Start and Prevention Service Director, People Directorate, Margaret Libreri
 Public Health Service Director, Carrie Abbott
 Head of Commissioning, Governance and Partnerships, People Directorate, Richard Lynch
 Lead Commissioner (Children’s Commissioning), Sarah Sinclair
 Financial Services Manager, Joshua Amahwe
 Performance Improvement Officer, Will Boyes
 Partnerships and Projects Officer, People Directorate, Denise Brown

NHS Barnsley Clinical Commissioning Group
 NHS Barnsley Clinical Commissioning Group Chief Nurse, Brigid Reid
 Head of Commissioning (Mental Health, Children’s & Specialised Services), Patrick Otway
 Lead Nurse for  CYP - Complex Health Needs / Continuing Care, Designated Clinical Officer, 

Karen O’Brien

Page 36



7

STRATEGIC BOARDS THAT CONTRIBUTE TO THE WORK OF THE 
CYPF TRUST
Barnsley Safeguarding Children Board
Barnsley Safeguarding Children Board is a statutory organisation responsible for agreeing how 
services and agencies work together to safeguard and promote the welfare of children and young 
people in the borough, and for ensuring that they do so effectively. All local authorities are 
required to have a Local Safeguarding Children Board to comply with Section 13 of the Children 
Act 2004. 
The Board brings together senior representatives from the key statutory, voluntary and 
community sectors with a responsibility for delivering services to children and young people. The 
Board also has two lay members who are representative of the local community in Barnsley.
Members of the Board work to keep children and young people in Barnsley safe from harm, 
particularly those who are most vulnerable, and to make sure that they feel secure, well cared 
for, and able to reach their full potential. They also provide support and training for those who 
work with children and young people, in whatever capacity, to make sure that they are fully aware 
of their roles and responsibilities in relation to safeguarding, and that they are appropriately 
qualified.
The work of the Board falls into the wider context of our Children's Trust arrangements, which 
focus on improving the overall wellbeing of all Barnsley children and young people to ensure that 
children and young people are cared for, have security and stability and are kept safe.

The Barnsley Alliance Board
This is a partnership model based on sector-led school improvement. School to school support is 
commissioned through a combination of Teaching School Alliances and system leaders. A new 
relationship with the Council recognises that whilst the sector will be responsible for the 
improvement agenda, the Council retains a shared statutory responsibility for outcomes. The 
Barnsley Alliance Board ensures that we have the right level of support and challenge to ensure 
that the quality of provision drives improved outcomes.

The make-up of the Board is generally based on the nine geographical ‘pyramids’ within the 
Borough, and each pyramid has elected a representative to sit on the Alliance Board. In addition 
to these nine members there are three representatives from the Barnsley Governors Association 
(BGA); the Executive Director for People; the Service Manager for Education, Early Start and 
Prevention; and the Cabinet Spokesperson for Education and Skills. 

The Board meets each month to agree support to schools causing concern, and borough wide 
professional development.  In addition, Local Authority officers will periodically report back to the 
Board on the impact of this commissioned work.

Stronger Communities Partnership
This newly established partnership will provide a strategic focus, strengthening areas where 
necessary, and will ensure that there is no duplication of effort.  Priorities will be progressed 
through three Delivery Groups:
1. Delivery Group One - Resilient and Healthy Communities
2. Delivery Group Two - Early Help and Prevention
3. Delivery Group Three - Anti-Poverty

Both the Children and Young People’s Trust and the Barnsley Safeguarding Children Board will 
remain sighted on progress. 

Community Safety Partnership
Barnsley Community Safety Partnership is a statutory partnership, composed of organisations 
including Barnsley MBC, South Yorkshire Police and Voluntary Action Barnsley. Its statutory role 
is to reduce crime and disorder, including anti-social behaviour in the Borough. Among the 

Page 37

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2004/31/contents
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2004/31/contents


8

continuing priorities of the Partnership, based upon the Joint Strategic Intelligence Assessment, 
 is to help reduce youth offending, and re-offending and, also, to reduce hate crime, including 
racial or homophobic bullying in schools as well as to tackle domestic violence and violent, 
controlling or coercive behaviour in the home and the harmful effects upon children.

In addition, the recently created Barnsley Multi-Agency Safeguarding Hub or MASH, in which the 
Community Safety Partnership plays a prominent part, acts as the first point of contact for 
anyone who is concerned for a child or young person’s safety and wellbeing, including suspicions 
that a child may be the subject of grooming for radicalisation or sexual exploitation. The Barnsley 
MASH ensures a more coherent and consistent response to safeguarding concerns over children 
and young people.

Achievements for 2015/16
This report is an annual summary of what has been achieved during 2015-16 and how we plan to 
make further improvements over the life of the next Children and Young People’s Plan 2016 -19.

Tackling child poverty and improving family life 

Stronger Communities Partnership (SCP)
During the Council’s re-structure it had been agreed that the work around ‘early help’ and ‘think 
family’ would be driven by the Communities Directorate. The SCP provides a strategic focus and 
ensures that there is no duplication of effort. Accountability for early help and think family remains 
with the People Directorate and as such both the CYP Trust and the BSCB would remain sighted 
on progress. 

The Stronger Communities Partnership (SCP) met for the first time on 9 November 2015, and is 
supported by three delivery groups:
4. Resilient and Healthy Communities
5. Early Help and Prevention
6. Anti-Poverty

The Anti-Poverty Action Plan 2015-18 was developed, detailing the activity for key challenge 
areas: 
 To help people to make the most of the money they have and improve their potential income.
 To reduce child poverty, to help parents give their children the best start in life.
 Ensure that strategies and plans are ‘poverty proof’.
 To evaluate joint impact, and to determine whether or not the expected results are being 

achieved.

Early Help for Families
Barnsley’s whole family approach to working with families continues with the implementation of 
the Early Help Assessment. It is important to reinforce the message that early help is everyone’s 
responsibility and to improve integrated working and workforce development.  Early help is an 
‘invest to save’ initiative. Getting early help right will prevent problems from escalating and avoid 
longer and more expensive interventions. It is important that everyone takes ownership of early 
help, and that partners and the children’s workforce have the ability to signpost referrals 
appropriately. 

Early Help services in Barnsley form part of the continuum of help and support to respond to the 
different levels of need of children and families. A new model for delivering early help services for 
families was implemented from 1 April 2016 with a single point of referral into services. The 
model ensures that families are able to access services at the earliest opportunity, from pre-birth 
until children are 19 years old, or 25 years old if the child or young person has a disability.  

Page 38



9

The model is based upon early help services delivered through Family Centres, I Know I Can 
(IKIC) Centres and other suitable community venues so that families can access integrated 
services that make sense to them, in their community.  The move to Family Centres is built on 
the excellent work undertaken by Children’s Centres over the last decade and those delivered 
through the Targeted Youth Support Service.  

Family Centres are non-stigmatised gateways to services for all families in their local community, 
recognising that targeted interventions and outreach services are vital in supporting families who 
need it most in order to narrow the gap in outcomes. 

A sector led peer review of early help was conducted in October 2015. The review identified 
strengths and areas for development which were considered by TEG. As a result, an Early Help 
Steering Group for Children was put in place under the leadership of the Head of Service Early 
Start, Sufficiency & Prevention.

Early support pathway for children with additional/complex needs
The early support pathway was improved to provide a smooth transition from early pregnancy 
through to year 5. The pathway aims to ensure that early intervention and support is in place if 
there is an abnormal scan or blood test result during pregnancy. The audit of the pathway began 
in January 2016. 

SEND Reforms
The momentum for change with regard to meeting the needs of children and young people with 
special education needs/disability continues to be through the robust implementation of the 
‘Special Educational Needs and Disability Code of Practice 2014’ by maintaining a clear focus on 
the participation of children and young people and their parents in decision-making processes. 
At an individual level this focuses on their involvement in the Education, Health and Care 
Planning process, and at a strategic level through appropriate consultation and coproduction of 
key areas of strategic development including the drive towards personalisation. Joint planning 
and commissioning of services within education, health and social care is becoming well 
established and further work around the strengthening of panel arrangements and the 
development of personal budgets to support assessed need will take place with multi-agency 
strategic partners. 

Improving staff skills to deliver quality services

Children’s Workforce Development
A Workforce Development Training Plan was developed for 2015/16. The aim is to maximise 
training opportunities and skills in the workforce, to evaluate the impact of learning and to track 
improvement. The core areas are induction and supporting the collective workforce. Evidence of 
the impact of training is still an area for development.  A decision was taken to expand the 
Safeguarding Workforce Development Group to include the wider remit of workforce 
development. 

Page 39



10

Encouraging positive relationships and strengthening emotional 
health

Local Transformation Action Plan ‘Future in Mind’
NHS England developed the ‘Future in Mind’ programme to re-shape the way services for 
children and young people with mental health needs are commissioned and delivered.  The 
Barnsley CCG took the lead in working with partners to develop a local transformation plan for 
Barnsley, reporting via the Executive Commissioning Group (ECG).  Key aspects of the 
transformation plan include work already taking place with schools, and access to therapeutic 
support.  

Child and Adolescent Mental Health Service Performance and Improvement Task and 
Finish Group
Average waiting times to initial appointment had been improved and the aim was to reduce this to 
5 weeks by March 2016. A notice had been circulated in February 2016 reiterating the message 
that the most appropriate route for schools to refer children to CAMHS is through the school 
nurse, which was preferable to parents making requests via their GP.   

The New Street Health Centre was refurbished and opened on 7 December 2015, which offers a 
CAMHS Service to children and young people in the Barnsley area up to their 18th birthday who 
are experiencing a wide range of behavioural, psychological and emotional problems, difficult 
relationships, trauma or abuse.

Keeping children and young people safe

Development of the Multi-Agency Safeguarding Hubs (MASH) enables a number of partner 
organisations to work together in the same premises, improving working practices and 
communication for the benefit of children and young people. 

Procedure for children missing from home or care 
A policy was approved in April 2015 giving clear guidance to practitioners to ensure that children 
who go missing, or who are absent from care or home are safeguarded. 

The Executive Commissioning Group had agreed that the service ‘Missing and Runaways’ would 
be delivered in-house for a time to ensure safe and appropriate practice and pathways of 
support.  Agreement had been secured with the Regional Charity ‘Safe@Last’ to provide a full 
time member of staff for Barnsley and Rotherham to undertake follow-up work with cases where 
necessary.  

Contacts into Social Care
Performance reporting in Barnsley indicated a consistent increase in social care referrals, which 
resulted in fewer assessments being completed within timescales. A number of issues were 
identified where current practice could be improved upon, and in February 2016 TEG agreed to 
proposed changes in practice to Children’s Social Care screening and assessment focusing on: 
referrals to the service; timeliness; volume and quality of social work assessments; and recording 
of information. 

A Multi-Agency Referral Audit (MARA) Group was established to provide a consistent and regular 
overview of agency practice at the point of referral to Children’s Social Care. 

Page 40



11

Improving education, achievement and employability

Barnsley Alliance Board
The Barnsley Alliance Board is commissioned through the Children’s Trust to enable schools to 
be supported and challenged to drive forward attainment and outcomes through sharing of best 
practice. Key issues are inclusion and healthy children in schools. 

Persistent absence from school 
The Behaviour and Attendance Group, which is a sub-group of the Barnsley Alliance Board, 
undertook a deep dive into the reasons for persistent absence from school, which highlighted the 
difference between those who are disadvantaged (receiving pupil premium) and those who are 
not. The outcome of the discussion was to develop a communications strategy to convey the 
importance of school attendance, and posters were circulated for display in various venues 
including schools, GPs surgeries, libraries etc to highlight the importance of school attendance. 
Partners agreed to raise the profile of persistent absence in their respective organisations, and to 
consider how a joint approach across the children’s workforce might improve school attendance. 
GPs were asked to consider booking after hours appointments for children and young people, 
rather than during the school day.  A number of young people and their parents had been 
stopped during a truancy sweep in the town centre, providing an opportunity to stress the 
importance of attending school. 

School Exclusions 
The Barnsley Alliance Board has been asked to commission a piece of work around exclusions 
to help the CYP Trust to understand the issues, and in particular to include the outcomes for 
children who are permanently excluded. 

Special Educational Needs and Disabilities (SEND) Strategy 
Work took place to further improve the provision for young people with special educational needs 
in Barnsley. The core purpose of the SEND strategy is ‘to work together to improve children's 
outcomes’ and recognises that SEND encompasses children and young people with a broad 
range of needs. For some, the focus of support will be wholly educational, for others their 
families will need support from a number of statutory services and this may continue 
throughout their childhood and into adulthood. It was agreed that work would take place with 
the Barnsley Parent and Carers Forum to emphasise the importance of including the child’s 
voice, and in particular to equip the workforce to capture the wishes and feelings of non-
verbal children.

One of the key drivers in the work to improve provision for children with special educational 
needs is to reduce the number of children with an Education and Health Care Plan (EHCP) and 
to focus on early intervention. An outcomes framework measures the success of the SEND 
system in Barnsley and a steering group was developed to drive this work forward, escalating 
any issues to the TEG as necessary.  

Provision of short breaks for children and young people with a disability in Barnsley
A Short Breaks Strategy was approved in February 2016 with a key focus on independence and 
use of personal health budgets. 

Supporting children, young people and families to make healthy 
lifestyle choices

0-19 Healthy Child Programme
From 1 October 2015 the responsibility for commissioning public health services for children 
aged 0-19 transferred to local authorities, including School Nursing, Health Visiting and Family 
Nurse Partnership Services, and an integrated Healthy Child Programme 0-19 years was formed. 

Page 41



12

Family Nurse Partnership 
In January 2016 Cabinet approved decommissioning of the Family Nurse Partnership with effect 
from 1 April 2016.  Lessons learnt were transferred into the 0-19 Healthy Child Programme and 
the Targeted Youth Support review. 

Child Health Programme Board 
The Child Health Programme Board was stood down and it was agreed that the work would be 
realigned within five workstreams: 
1. Childhood Obesity – Rebecca Clarke
2. Smoking in Young People – Diane Lee and Tobacco Control Alliance
3. Healthy Start – Will be picked up as part of the 0-19 commissioning arrangements. 
4. Oral Health – Anita Dobson – this is a Public Health priority
5. Breastfeeding – Helen Mills (SWYPFT).

Public Health Strategy 
The Public Health Strategy was published, supported by the following action plans:
1. Improving the oral health of children
2. Creating a smoke-free generation
3. Increasing levels of physical activity

RU Different 
During 2014/15 Public Health commissioned a social norms programme called ‘RU Different’ 
which was offered to all secondary schools in Barnsley, with the aim of reducing young people’s 
engagement with risky behaviours. The approach provided a means of engaging with young 
people to gain their views to inform future commissioning decisions and attempted to correct 
misperceptions of their peers behaviours. It is felt that by helping young people to be aware of 
‘normal’ behaviour amongst their peers may impact on their own choices and behaviour. The 
programme was delivered to year 9 pupils in partnership with participating schools. It was noted 
however that the programme is relatively new and therefore not yet able to provide evidence to 
demonstrate that change is sustainable over time.  

Stillbirths in Barnsley 
A presentation was given to review the trends of intrauterine foetal death and stillbirths in 
Barnsley Hospital. The UK ranks 33rd of 35 high income countries for its stillbirth rates, and it is a 
national maternity priority to reduce the numbers of stillbirths/ IUFDs. The most common 
modifiable risk factor is smoking. 

Barnsley is classed as outstanding with 100% compliance in the ‘stillbirth care bundle’ which 
includes four elements: reducing smoking in pregnancy; detecting foetal growth restriction; 
raising awareness of reduced foetal movement; improving effective foetal monitoring during 
labour.

Barnsley Parent and Carers Forum 
In April 2016 a presentation was given to the TEG on the work of the Barnsley Parent and Carers 
Forum. The importance of the need for parents to be listened to and understood was stressed. 

Executive Commissioning Group (ECG) achievements:
Stronger Families Service
In April 2015 it was agreed that this service would be decommissioned. A positive evaluation of 
the service was received and therefore elements of the service were built into the early help offer. 

Placement and Sufficiency Strategy for Children in Care (2014-17) 
The unit costs of looked after children were reduced through the Placement and Sufficiency 
Strategy for Children in Care. 

Page 42



13

Quarterly performance reports are received to monitor progress towards achieving the objectives 
of the strategy. It is important to increase foster care capacity in Barnsley, to retain trained and 
good quality foster carers and increase the skill levels of existing carers to cope with the 
challenges of caring for young people who are difficult to place. A Marketing Officer was recruited 
to the fostering team to promote this service. 

Provision of support for children identified as victims of sexual violence including abuse 
and/or sexual exploitation
The Executive Commissioning Group agreed to endorse the proposal to co-produce a service 
offer with BMBC, NHSB and BSARCS. 

Return Home interviews
In-house arrangements for ‘return home’ interviews are up and running and numerous referrals 
had been received.

Short breaks
A Short Breaks Commissioning Strategy was developed reviewing existing short breaks 
provision, procurement of services and the development of a personalised approach to 
commissioning, including personal budgets and direct payments. 

In relation to the work programme for 2016/17, reference was made to increasing personalisation 
and moving away from block contract provision, and the challenge ahead to taper transition to 
support families and meet their needs within a constantly challenging resource envelope. 

Key areas of work during 2016/17 include: 
 Review Terms of Reference for the group, partnership arrangements and CCG contract 

negotiations.
 Commissioning in relation to the SEND Strategy including the development of, and ability to 

deliver, personal budgets; implantation of the Short Breaks Commissioning Strategy; and 
the development of joint commissioning arrangements and governance.

 The development of a sufficiency strategy for specialist education placements, and 
revision/ implementation of the LA Sufficiency Strategy for Children in Care.

 The implementation of the agreed commissioning recommendations for the 0-19 contract.
 Continued development of services which promote the emotional health and wellbeing of 

children and young people, and services which support vulnerable children. 
 A focus on performance and improvement of commissioned services.
 The review and revision of the service specification for Children Therapies (SALT/ 

Occupational Therapy/ Physiotherapy).
 The review and implantation of the ASD Assessment and Review Pathway.
 Review and procurement of commissioned services as required.  
 Consideration of the implications of the spending review.

PERFORMANCE, QUALITY AND OUTCOMES
The Improvement Framework drives further improvement across the Children and Young 
People’s Trust which is monitored through the continuous service improvement plan, and is 
scrutinised by both the Barnsley Safeguarding Children Board and the Children and Young 
People’s Trust Executive Group.  The Safeguarding Children Board holds the responsibility for 
ensuring that progress against the framework is made.  

Robust performance and programme management is in place in relation to each of the strategic 
priorities, including a Performance Management Framework, performance indicators, clear 
outcome measures, and targets accounting for statistical neighbours and national averages for 
each of the six priorities. 

Page 43



14

Performance is regularly reported through the relevant Governance structures within the Children 
and Young People’s Trust and the Barnsley Safeguarding Children Board and its sub-groups.

Priorities where partnership effort can be aligned to 
have the biggest impact and make the most difference 
to children, young people and families:
 Ensure all CYPF Trust partners effectively safeguard children and young people
 A whole partnership approach to improving school attendance / improve educational 

attainment for all Barnsley’s children
 Build resilient families and promote healthy lifestyle choices
 Provide a strong early help offer / Multi-agency Safeguarding Hub (MASH)
 A targeted response to supporting vulnerable young people to reduce risk taking behaviours
 Strengthen the emotional health of children and young people 
 Good leadership and management skills to ensure that a skilled and confident workforce is 

working towards continuous improvement of services
 A workforce that understands the changing demographic profile of Barnsley and has the 

ability to meet a diverse range of needs
 Increased aspirations and improved economic stability in Barnsley
 Change what is seen as ‘the norm’ in terms of behaviour and lifestyle choices

Core qualities for an effective Children’s Service: 
 Professional curiosity
 Ability to identify needs as early as possible 
 To offer the right service at the right time 
 Consider the needs of the whole family 
 Be tenacious 
 Provide respectful challenge 
 Strive for continuous improvement 
 Demonstrate performance 
 Work collectively to meet strategic priorities, key ambitions and improve outcomes

THE CHALLENGES AHEAD
Outcomes for children and young people in Barnsley are improving, but they are not improving 
quickly enough and the gap between us and the best in the country is still too wide. Raising 
aspirations and confidence and developing enterprising behaviour are the foundations for 
tackling health, deprivation and social concerns, as well as educational achievement. The focus 
of our collective effort is to move from dealing with the consequences of difficulties in children 
and young people’s lives to providing help at an early stage. We intend to work as a partnership 
to effectively prevent significant difficulties arising and support the delivery of better outcomes for 
children, young people and their families. Discharging safeguarding children responsibilities, 
however, remains at the heart of the service.  Current challenges facing the CYPF Trust include:

 Increase in the population and diversity of children and young people

 Increase in complexity of need

 Rising costs and reducing resources

 Complexity within the children and young people’s service system

 Delivering effective early help

 Effective implementation of education, health and care plans

Page 44



15

 Managing the demand for Children’s Social Care Services

 Responding to the demands of the regulatory and inspection framework

Every attempt is being made to ensure that services are as efficient as possible and that 
resources go to where they are most needed.  It is acknowledged that all partners across the 
CYPF Trust are facing challenging financial constraints and it is therefore vital to maintain strong 
and healthy partnership working arrangements to ensure efficient, effective and sustainable 
outcomes are achieved for Barnsley’s children, young people and families. 

Page 45



This page is intentionally left blank



TEG Work Programme 2016-17
Agenda Items Action Dates of future TEG meetings during 2016/17 Responsible person/

organisation
Frequency Source

17-Jun 04-Aug 06-Oct 24-Nov 20-Jan 03-Mar 27-Apr 08-Jun 20-Jul
1 Standing agenda items:

1.1 Barnsley Safeguarding Children's Board (BSCB) minutes Provide minutes/ a verbal update ü ü ü ü ü ü ü ü ü Bob Dyson Every meeting

1.2 Terms of Reference/ Partnership Agreement Revision Review annually ü Richard Lynch Annually (Sept/Oct) ToR/ Accountability and Governance

1.3 Continuous Service Improvement Framework & Plan Receive updates on progress ü ü ü ü ü ü ü ü ü Julie Govan Every meeting (e-mail from Julie Govan 24.11.2014)

1.4 Children's Workforce Development TEG agreed to support the approved
implementation plan by continued
commitment to partnership working via the
Trust Workforce Development Group, to
consider at a future meeting a stronger
assurance/ evaluation framework; and to
receive regular updates on progress.

ü ü ü ü ü

Amanda Glew Regularly TEG 17 Jan 2014 (item 12)

1.5 CYP Plan Strategic Priority Themes performance highlights/ risks Identify issues for escalation ü ü ü ü ü ü ü ü ü Theme leads/ all members Every meeting TEG 7 Nov 2014

1.6 TEG Work Programme review Highlight additions and for the coming
items ü ü ü ü ü ü ü ü ü Richard Lynch Every meeting

2 Children and Young People's Plan strategic priority themes: Sub-group leads to report on
performance measures to monitor/
challenge; provide updates into TEG;
highlight where there are problems
with performance

2.1 Tackling child poverty and improving family life Sub-group report and performance
highlights

ü
Andrea Hoyland/
Jayne Hellowell

Annually

2.1.1 Parenting   (family support/child poverty)   Action focused discussion
ü

Andrea Hoyland/
Jayne Hellowell

2.2 Improving staff skills to deliver quality services Sub-group report and performance
highlights

ü Amanda Glew Annually

2.2.1 Workforce Development/ skills Action focused discussion ü Amanda Glew Regular updates

2.3 Encouraging positive relationships and strengthening emotional health Sub-group report and performance
highlights

ü Brigid Reid Annually

2.3.1 Behaviour support and emotional wellbeing Action focused discussion ü Brigid Reid

2.3.2 Access to therapeutic support and waiting times Action focused discussion ü Brigid Reid

2.4 Keeping children and young people safe Sub-group report and performance
highlights

ü ü Bob Dyson/ Mel John-Ross Annually

2.4.1 Early support pathway for children with additional/complex needs Further amendments to be made to the
early support pathway as agreed. A report
to be received in 6 months to consider the
effectiveness of the pathway.

ü ü

John Rooke/ Anita McCrum Agreed at TEG 18.12.2015, item 7

2.4.2 Contacts into Social Care and the 'front door' Action focused discussion ü ü Mel John-Ross

2.5 Improving education, achievement and employability Sub-group report and performance
highlights ü Margaret Libreri Annually

2.5.1 Vulnerable children with SEN Review of vulnerable children with SEN
(including results of a deep dive irt
exclusions of pupil premium pupils)

ü
Margaret Libreri TEG 6 Oct 2016 (item 5)

2.5.2 Local Area Special Educational Needs Ofsted Inspection. Ensure inspection Readyness ü Margaret Libreri ECG 11.1.2016 (item 8)

2.5.3 School exclusions. An update to be brought to TEG in the next
term to further discuss issues raised. ü

Margaret Libreri/
Dave Whitaker

TEG 17 March 2016

2.5.4 SEND Strategy SEND Strategy and Action Plan ü Margaret Libreri

2.5.5 SEND Report ü Margaret Libreri E-mail from MSOS People 11.10.2016

2.5.6 Case study on the impact of non attendance and the services involved. Report on impact of Non-Attendance  
ü Keren Harben See e-mail 27.9.2016 from Keren Harben

requesting that this be removed from the
TEG agenda

2.5.7 Inclusion and vulnerable groups  Action focused discussion ü Matt Orr 

2.5.8 Barnsley Alliance Board report and action plan. Action focused discussion ü Margaret Libreri

2.5.9 Careers advice and guidance. Action focused discussion ü Margaret Libreri

2.6 Supporting children, young people and families to make healthy lifestyle choices Sub-group report and performance
highlights ü

Public Health/
Julia Burrows

Annually

2.6.1 Healthy Weight/ Childhood obesity Healthy Child Programme ambition ü Public Health, Rebecca Clark TEG 17 March 2016

2.6.2 Breastfeeding Healthy Child Programme ambition ü ü Diane Lee, Public Health / Kay
Bennett, BMBC & Helen Mills,
SWYPFT

TEG 17 March 2016

2.6.3 Reducing Teenage Pregnancies Action focused discussion - Healthy Child
Programme ambition.  Updates. ü ü Diane Lee, Public Health &

Emma Pye, SWYPFT
TEG 17 June 2016 (item 5.2) 

2.6.4 Public Health Strategy/ implementation plan This needs to go via H&WB Board and SMT
before TEG - scheduled for March meeting. ü Public Health, Rebecca Clark e-mails from Anne Firth 1.10.2015 &

9.11.2015

2.6.5 Smoking in Young People. Public Health strategic priority 1 ü Public Health, Diane Lee/Kaye
Mann

TEG 17 March 2016

2.6.6 Oral health  Public Health strategic priority 2 ü Public Health, Anita Dobson TEG 17 March 2016

P
age 47

Item
 12



2.6.7 Physical activity Public Health strategic priority 3. ü Place/ Public Health, Julie
Tolhurst

2.6.8 Daily Mile Programme Update in April re. number of schools that
have signed up to the programme. ü Margaret Libreri TEG 6 Oct 2016, item 4.1.

2.6.9 0-19 Public Health - HCP progress against new 0 – 19 model CYP Health and Wellbeing ü Public Health, Carrie Abbott/
Kay Bennett

TEG 17 March 2016

3 Agenda Items:

3.1 Stronger Communities Partnership Action Plan A SCP Action Plan to be submitted to future
TEG and BSCB meeting ü Paul Hussey Agreed at TEG 6.11.2015, item 9(ii)

3.2 Stronger Communities Partnership  Provide updates to future meetings ü ü Paul Hussey TEG 6 Oct 2016, item 8

3.3 Troubled Families Update ü Andrea Hoyland/
Jayne Hellowell

Requested via e-mail (23.6.2016)

3.4 Looked After Children Sufficiency Strategy/ Foster Carer Placements Action focused discussion regarding how to
collectively secure more foster carers in
Barnsley. 

ü Richard Lynch Executive Commissioning Group 23 May
2016, item 5.

3.5 All Age Early Help Strategy Paul Hussey TEG 6 Oct 2016, item 4.1 (was on for 24
November 2016 agenda)

4. Updates on progress
4.1 Progress on outcomes of Children and Young People's Plan Report on progress against outcomes 

ü ü
Julie Green Quarterly

4.2 Joint Strategic Needs Assessment Action focused discussion ü Liz Pitt

4.3 Information sharing Action focused discussion ü ?

4.4 Progress update from Parent and Carers Forum Report on progress  
ü Parent Carers Forum Annually Agreed at TEG 29 April 2016, item 5

(last bullet)
4.5 Future in Minds’ progress from service (SWYFT) SWYPFT e-mail 21.9.2016 - Angela Higgins (obo

Sean Rayner)
4.6 Sexual Health update from service (Spectrum) e-mail 21.9.2016 - Angela Higgins

P
age 48


	Agenda
	4. Minutes of the Trust Executive Group meeting held on 6 October 2016 - for accuracy
	4.1 Action Log/Matters Arising
	5. Joint Strategic Needs Assessment
	Joint Strategic Needs Assessment - appendix 2

	7. Monitoring template
	8. CYP Trust Annual Report - draft for comment
	12. TEG Work Programme Review

